APPROVED MINUTES
PLANNING COMMISSION
REGULAR MEETING
CITY OF WYOMING, MINNESOTA
MARCH 27, 2018
7:00 PM

CALL TO ORDER:

Planning Commission Chairman Engstrom called the Regular Meeting of the Wyoming Planning
Commission of March 27, 2018 to order at 7:00 P.M.

CALL OF ROLL:

On a Call of the Roll the following members of the Wyoming Planning Commission were present:
Judy Coughlin, Matthew Engstrom, Mark Lobermeier, and Dennis Schilling.

Members Absent: None.

Also Present: Council Liaison Lisa lIverson, City Administrator Robb Linwood, and Zoning
Administrator Fred Weck.

DETERMINATION OF A QUORUM:

Chairman Engstrom determined a quorum was present.
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:

OPEN FORUM:

“An opportunity for members of the public to address the Planning Commission on items not on the
current Agenda. Items requiring Planning Commission action maybe deferred to staff for research
and future Planning Commission Agendas if appropriate.”

No members of the public spoke.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:

1. Consider approving the minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Wyoming, Minnesota
Planning Commission for February 13, 2018.

A MOTION WAS MADE BY PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBER SCHILLING, SECONDED BY
PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBER COUGHLIN, TO APPROVE THE “REGULAR MEETING”
MINUTES OF THE WYOMING, MINNESOTA PLANNING COMMISSION FOR FEBRUARY 13,
2018.

Voting Aye:  Coughlin, Engstrom, and Schilling.
Voting Nay: None
Abstain: Lobermeier

SCHEDULED PUBLIC HEARINGS:
2. Architectural Standards

Chairman Engstrom opened the Public Hearing at 7:04 p.m. Being there were no public comments,
he closed the Public Hearing at 7:04 p.m.

A MOTION WAS MADE BY PLANNING MEMBER COUGHLIN, SECONDED BY PLANNING
COMMISSION MEMBER SCHILLING, TO RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF ORDINANCE 2018-01.
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CITY OF WYOMING CODE OF ORDINANCES, CHAPTER 40,
ARTICLE VII, ARTICLE VII, DIVISION 5, ARCHITECTURAL STANDARDS AND DIVISION 1
ACCESSORY STRUCTURES AND USES.



Voting Aye:  Coughlin, Engstrom, Lobermeier, and Schilling.
Voting Nay: None
Abstain: None

NEW BUSINESS:
3. None.

OLD BUSINESS

4, Ordinance Review Shoreland Ordinance.

Zoning Administrator Weck stated that for review purposes, he had included a few documents for the
Commission to consider in looking at a Shoreland Ordinance. He noted that he had included the
City ordinance with portions underlined or struck through where language had changed. There is
also a model ordinance that he has included his notes in the margins, as well as the Department of
Natural Resources (DNR) model, which includes the DNR’s notes in the margins for clarification. He
gave a brief overview of the proposed Shoreland Ordinance. He noted that some of the items from
the existing City ordinance were more restrictive than the model from the DNR. He reviewed some
of the changes and differences in definitions, and, noted that many are not currently used in the
zoning ordinance and could, perhaps, be removed. He noted that he felt the land use districts table
format was a much easier way to understand the information.

Chair Engstrom noted that there is a lot of information to consider and a thorough review will take
more than one meeting to tackle it all.

Commissioner Coughlin thanked Zoning Administrator Weck for all the work sorting through this and
putting it all together. She agrees that this will take awhile for the Commission to review it and at one
time, had discussed simply covering a section at a time at each meeting. She noted she did have a
few guestions about some things that caught her eye. In the model shoreland ordinance section,
there was a note about some things being covered in our subdivision ordinance versus our regular
ordinance. She asked what was meant by that note.

Zoning Administrator Weck stated that comment was regarding what was required on the drawings.
The City subdivision ordinance requires the same things, so instead of reiterating them here, just
leaving the language in place to refer back to the subdivision ordinance.

Commissioner Coughlin stated on the land use chart, there are still some areas that reference
Section 10, which would be from the model ordinance.

Zoning Administrator Weck took note of these references.

Chair Engstrom stated that perhaps the land use table, Section 40-314.1, could be the first area the
Commission discusses at tonight’s meeting, rather than taking a look at the whole ordinance.

Commissioner Lobermeier asked for Zoning Administrator Weck’s opinion on the model ordinance
versus the City’s ordinance. He asked if the City would be trading a good ordinance for better or vice
versa.

Zoning Administrator Weck stated that overall it is not a big change as far as restrictions go, just
primarily some wording and clarification of definitions.

Commissioner Lobermeier would like to revisit the reasons that the City was even taking a look at
this issue again. He stated that he thinks delving into this ordinance was because of two specific
issues that came up within the last year: the issue of a variance at Heims Lake; and the proposed
subdivision on Comfort Lake. As he looked through the different documents, he still found places
where the language wasn'’t clear, for example the word “facility” is used, but there is no definition for



that word. He wonders if the Commission should start discussion based on the two original reasons
the Commission began looking at the Shoreland Ordinance, and then look at the overall proposed
changes to the ordinance.

Chair Engstrom stated that he liked how this document is organized and made it easy for discussion
purposes. He thinks Commissioner Lobermeier’s questions can be answered about the examples he
highlighted as part of the initial discussion on the land use table. He asked for clarification on what
a transition river is because he couldn’t find a clear answer in the document.

Planning Administrator Weck noted that it is a river that is from Comfort Lake up into Carlos Avery.
He reviewed the tributary rivers and their locations.

Chair Engstrom asked if maps were ever included in the ordinance to help clarify some of these
locations.

Planning Administrator Weck stated that they are all shown on the zoning map. For the smaller
wetland areas there is one posted on the County site as well, that shows all the unnamed and
numbered water bodies. He stated that he could include a map within the body of the ordinance for
clarification.

Chair Engstrom stated that in thinking about the different categories and the different land uses, the
first thing that came to his mind was that the City has a limited number of lakes and already has a
zoning map. He asked if this was specific to Wyoming or if this is just what the model ordinance says.

Planning Administrator Weck stated that it was what the model ordinance said which ties into State
statutes and rules, so there is a basis for why they are selected the way they are. He noted that it is
important to remember that there is still an underlying zoning ordinance that also ties in. For example,
general development at Comfort Lake. There is no City sewer or water there and is all single family
residential. So, at this time, the table says that duplex/triplex/quad residential would be a permitted
use, however, the underlying zoning will prohibit that, because there isn’'t sewer and water there.

Chair Engstrom noted that if there was no way that some of these uses would ever be allowed based
on our current zoning, would there be a way to simplify it so there isn’t confusion among residents
about what is actually allowed.

Planning Administrator Weck reviewed an example near Comfort Lake and current zoning
designations. He reminded the Commission that you can apply for property to be rezoned, but,
cannot apply for a variance in usage.

Chair Engstrom stated that he had a question allowing industrial next to lakes, which is listed
conditional for two of them, but not allowed for others. He asked how that relates to the City.

Planning Administrator Weck noted that Xccent is zoned Industrial.

Chair Engstrom noted his concern regarding allowing feedlots because of lake water quality
concerns.

Planning Administrator Weck stated that he would recommend not allowing them.
Chair Engstrom questioned extractive use and mining of metallic minerals and peat.

Planning Administrator Weck stated that he would like to speak to the DNR about this item. His
understanding is that extractive use would be things like gravel pits. He noted that there is a
Minnesota State statute regarding mineral rights, so the City couldn’t change it even if it wanted to.
He doesn’t think that the City will have any uses under this area either because he doesn’t think there
is any peat around.



Commissioner Coughlin asked if the City felt there were certain uses that didn’t belong in a shoreland
district, if it could just take them out.

Planning Administrator Weck stated that he believes so, as long as there isn’t a State statute in place,
like there is for the mining of metallic minerals and peat.

The Commission discussed Section 40-316 Planned Unit Development (PUD) and Section 40-318
Lot Area and Width Standards. It was determined that a definition of “mooring” should be added.

Chair Engstrom suggested stopping general discussion for tonight and opening it up for public
comment.

The Commissioners discussed ways to break up the ordinance for future discussions and suggested
going ahead and eliminating the unnecessary definitions that Planning Administrator Weck had
pointed out. It was decided that the Commission would attempt to discuss the remainder of the
ordinance at the next meeting.

Richard Berglund, 26001 Hunter Avenue, asked about the location of the controlled access lots from
the table and how taxes are determined for controlled access lots.

Planning Administrator Weck noted that it was not included because if someone wanted to develop
as a controlled access, the rules and regulations would fall under the underlying zoning ordinance.
He would have to ask the tax assessor about the tax question, but, surmised that it was land value
as well as any improvements made to the property.

George Osgood, 7559 260" Avenue, stated that he would like to see the whole section on controlled
access eliminated. If the City isn’t able to do that, and someone was willing to put in the work to have
controlled access, he asked if they could put in a sewage system under this ordinance.

Chair Engstrom stated that they would have to have a septic system that met all the standards.

Planning Administrator Weck referenced 3.(d)4., and noted that a septic system would be required,
and would need to follow all the standards and requirements. He gave a brief comparison of the
differences between a home septic system and a commercial septic system.

Mr. Osgood stated that a comment had been made that the Commission didn’t think someone would
give up two lakeshore lots in order to put something like this in, but, if they came up with a magic
number for a higher price tag for the lots, he thinks it can happen.

Chair Engstrom suggested that the Commission could take a look at how many boat slips are
allowed.

Planning Administrator Weck stated that would be difficult to run through all the possible scenarios
of who might buy what land and how they may try to develop it.

Mary Renn, 25421 West Comfort Drive, asked if allowing controlled access was still negotiable or
not. She asked the Commission to keep in mind that those lots had been sold before and they were
going to put in controlled access on those 315 feet of shoreland and were planning boat landings
and launch and as many slips as they could get in and were even planning on gasoline storage.

Chair Engstrom asked if there was really a plan or if all of these things were just possibilities.

Planning Administrator Weck confirmed that there was a development plan for that acreage,
however, he doesn’t remember it being done as controlled access.

Ms. Renn stated that when this project was being planned, she had just moved in and there was
discussion about their home tying into a community septic for this project. Somehow, the project fell



through, but the developer was telling all the neighbors that those two lots were going to be controlled
access, which is why she is concerned about the proposed ordinance change. She noted that if this
controlled access was simply a swimming area, she would be okay with that, but, knows that other
neighbors wouldn’t be. She does have a huge problem with having a watercraft launch located here
when there is already a public access just down the road. She asked if there would be a more of a
stringent limit on the number of boats that are allowed. She stated that she thinks Lindstrom has a
very strict rule that only allows six. She read a portion of the model shoreland ordinance that stated
if a community is concerned about overcrowding, that they can prohibit controlled access, which is
what residents were requesting when this was discussed back in November. She stated that she
understands that Comfort Lake may be zoned as a general development lake, but the reality is that
it is a recreational development lake. She stated that she feels the ordinance, as presented, is too
vague and Comfort Lake will suffer for it. She would like more definitive and stricter language
included.

Jackie Anderson, 25484 East Comfort Drive, Forest Lake, asked for clarification on the earlier
comments made by Planning Administrator Weck regarding mining of metallic materials.

Planning Administrator Weck reiterated that for this section, that he believes the City may be stuck
having to follow the State statute for this situation, but he will confirm with the DNR. The City can
make it more restrictive, but, reiterated that he thinks the State Statute will supercede anything the
City decides.

Ms. Anderson stated that she is concerned about peat. She gave the example of the piles put along
the Sunrise River in Wyoming Township as part of the Walmart development that she feels led to the
start of the degradation of Comfort Lake. She stated she would like the City to try to be as restrictive
as it possible can be, in this area. She asked about the new 25-foot buffer law and how it applied to
the existing shoreland. She also had question in Section 40-316, #2 “The number of spaces provided
for continuous beaching, mooring or docking of watercraft must not exceed one for each allowable
dwelling or unit in the first tier.” She asked what “first tier” meant.

Planning Administrator Weck that the tiering system will not apply because the City is not allowing
increased density.

Ms. Anderson stated that needs to be explained or clarified to avoid confusion. She asked that the
document reference working with the watershed district in all the appropriate areas. She stated that
she thought this reference may be missing in a few areas of the ordinance. She asked if the Planning
Commission had ever considered treating street frontage as the backyard of lake property. She
noted that it is very typical in other communities where the front of the house is the lake and the back
is the street side. She stated that this allows smaller setbacks from the road and buildings such as
garages and storage building to be located near the road rather than the water. She also wanted to
comment on rip rap and encourage the Commission to use more stringent restrictions on it and noted
that in her opinion, it should always be the last resort. She stated that she feels the watershed district
rules are what the City should be striving for. If rip rap is used, there should be some sort of
engineering done so it is not allowing sediment to seep into the water, because sediment is where
phosphorus starts which needs to be stopped from getting into the water.

Jeff Blankenheim, 25710 East Comfort Drive, stated that he wanted to reinforce the reasons that
residents were here when this was discussed last year, to discuss controlled access. He stated that
putting Comfort Lake in the same category as Forest Lake seems absurd. When they are talking
about mooring in front of this area and the noise that would create, it wouldn’t just affect the
neighboring properties, but across the lake as well, because the lake is so narrow. He said that
creation of a clubhouse type facility would drastically alter the nature of the lake and the natural
setting that they have. He would like to see the City prohibit controlled access lots and doesn’t feel
that it will be a hardship to any of the investment owners and in the long term, will protect the integrity
and quality of the water.



Commissioner Coughlin asked if a clubhouse type facility would be allowed.

Planning Administrator Weck stated that the term “facilities” is used. He read aloud this portion of
the ordinance and noted that theoretically, something like that could be put in, related to the lake.

Chair Engstrom suggested the Commission talk about this issue in more depth at a future meeting,
but, questioned controlled access being zoned residential, but actually being treated closer to a
commercial use.

Planning Administrator Weck stated that he will talk to the DNR to clarify this.

Commissioner Coughlin stated that she has a vague memory of something coming up a few years
ago about clubhouses or lodges and where they would be located in the City.

Planning Administrator Weck stated that it was part of the discussion of allowing religious institutions
in the business districts and they included clubhouses and fraternal organizations.

Chair Engstrom stated that he thinks the full Commission has an idea of what is reasonable and what
is extreme and needs to come up with a balance between property rights and what is reasonable to
allow to develop in the City.

Ms. Anderson asked if the underlying zoning is residential, how would it become commercial. She
stated that people buying property in a residential zone, have the expectation that it will remain
residential.

Chair Engstrom thanked the residents for coming and giving their opinions for the Commission to
consider.

COMMUNICATIONS:

5. Urban Land Institute Minnesota

City Administrator Linwood explained that Urban Land Institute Minnesota, will be offering the City a
workshop on May 16, 2018, at 6:00 p.m. entitled Navigating Your Competitive Future. He noted that
there will be a panel of experts that are tailored towards Wyoming and is not simply a cookie cutter
session.

UPDATES:
6. None.
ADJOURN:

A MOTION WAS MADE BY PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBER COUGHLIN, SECONDED BY
PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBER LOBERMEIER, TO ADJOURN THE REGULAR MEETING
OF THE WYOMING, MINNESOTA PLANNING COMMISSION FOR MARCH 27, 2018 AT 8:35 P.M.

Voting Aye:  Coughlin, Engstrom, Lobermeier, and Schilling.
Voting Nay: None
Abstain: None



